High River Tennis Club History notes

According to Lillian Knupp in Life and Legends, former runner-up in the Manitoba Provincial Tennis
Championship, Arthur Bowman arrived in High River and an interest developed in the game. She doesn’t say
exactly when he arrived.She also wrote that two courts were built on the corner of Seventh Ave. and Second
St. S.W. These are in the background of the attached photos.

There are a couple of interesting stories, and a W.0. Mitchell connection:

“The tennis court fence ... is the spot where the de Foras family used to tether their old grey horse and buggy
before going to church nearby., or on longer jaunts by train to Calgary. Undoubtedly the horse watched many
a tennis match, unperturbed.

In 1926 the tennis courts included a pavilion.

During the 1940s, Bill Mitchell, having sold his “Jake and the Kid” tv rights, bought the old tennis court
property intending to build a much-needed apartment building on the site .... For some reason the site was
not considered suitable.

Meanwhile two courts had been built on the southeast corner of Seventh Ave. and First St., immediately
east of what was then the Catholic Church site.

In the late 1970’s interest in tennis once again revived, a club was formed, and courts were built south west

of the swimming pool on Tenth Ave. S.W.

From the High River Times:

- the first reference to a tennis club in High River is in the May 3/06 edition:
“A membership fee of $3 was fixed by High River Tennis Club for 1906. Officers for the year are A.H. Eckford,
John Brazier, Dr. Douglas Stanley, George Ash, Louis Roberts, Alfred Kelly, Dr. Learmouth, J.R. Anderson, Dr.
Hamilton and H.W. Blaylock”.

- on May 10, 1906 the ladies got into the game:
“Officers elected at the formation of the High River Ladies Tennis Club included Mesdames Baines, T.W.

Robertson, J.R. Anderson,

G.E. Ash, G.E. Learmouth, Blaylock and Thompson and the Misses Heslip”.

in 1908 at the organizational meeting - the fee was $3 for men and $1 for ladies.

- tennis was more than just a sport and often the tennis clubs ventured into social territory - most likely for
fundraising. In November 1908 the Times reported on an evening featuring Miss Lena Duthie and “presented
under the auspices of the High River Tennis Club” that would “no doubt receive large patronage”. Admission
was 50 cents and seats could be reserved.

- in 1910 the rates went up to $4 and $2 and matches were planned with players from Macleod and Calgary
and “other towns along the line”.

- See attached for a story from August 7, 1913

- In 1916 the fees were still $4 and $2 although a special fee of $1 was set for soldiers

- In 1920 a Tennis Club dance was held in the Town Hall. Gents: $1.50, Ladies 50 cents, Spectators 25 cents!



To: The High River Times - Kevin Rushworth
From: Irene Kerr, Museum of the Highwood
Subject: Article for Tuesday, April 18, 2016

Anyone for Tennis?

Tennis has always been a popular recreational activity in the area. According to the High River
Times, a membership fee of $3 was fixed at an organizational meeting of the High River tennis club
on May 3, 1906. A few days later the ladies got into the act with a meeting of their own. By 1908
there was one club for everyone with fees of $3 for men and $1 for ladies. Two courts were built
on the corner of 6th Avenue and 2nd Street S.W.

Over the years the tennis club held numerous social and musical events for fundraising. In 1908
one of the first was held with ‘talented Scotch vocalist’ Miss Lena Duthie. Matches were held with
players from Macleod and Calgary and “other towns along the line”.

In 1913 a column in the Times extolled the virtues of tennis and the idea that, unlike baseball
and football, it was deemed suitable for both sexes. It also featured more “educational” qualities
than the other two sports and demanded: “that a man be honest with himself and others,
courteous and considerate”.

Lillian Knupp, who lived across the street from the tennis courts when she was a child wrote a
humorous anecdote: “the tennis courts fence is the spot where the de Foras family used to tether
their old grey horse and buggy before going to church nearby or on longer jaunts by train to
Calgary. Undoubtedly the horse watched many a tennis match, unperturbed”.

Local churches got into the game with the organization of the Chalmers Church tennis club. The
church was located at the present site of the United Church, but it is not mentioned which courts
they played on. Around the same time the Times reported that the Anglican Church tennis courts
in the south part of town were being put into shape. In May 1922 a meeting was held to form yet
another tennis club. It was to play on the upgraded Anglican courts.

During the depression teams travelled to nearby towns for tournaments, and more fundraising
dances and events were held. In April 1932 two additional courts were built next to St. Francis’
Catholic church (on 7th Avenue and 1st Street SW.) .

The courts were severely impacted by the 1932 flood and the Times reported: “members of the
tennis club put in four solid hours recently removing silt from the courts and putting them back
into playing condition. The operation involved shovels, wheelbarrows etc. commandeered from all
sources”.

After the 1932 flood, it was reported that $520. was spent for new courts and equipment. The
fundraising and membership revenues must have been a success, by 1935 the club had paid off
their loan and reported that it was in “excellent financial shape”. They were able to reduce their
fees and High School students were offered the use of a court for free.

In 1936 the Tennis club was commended for the their contributions to “town beautification”. -
Several hundreds of dollars were spent on fresh coats of green and white paint for the fences and



clubhouse, new wire and new lounge benches were installed.

There is not much information in the museum archives regarding tennis between 1938 and the
1970’s when interest in tennis was once again revived, a club formed and courts built south west
of the swimming pool on 10th Ave. S.W. These courts were heavily used for many years until the
Charles Clark Medical Centre was builtin 2011.

Today, new courts have been built near Montrose. The courts are owned by the town but the
High River Tennis Club maintains and operates the courts. They are now accepting memberships
and lesson registrations for the 2016 season.

If you have any stories or images about the club over the last 110 years, please contact the

museum or the High River tennis club: www.highrivertennis.com
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A tennis meeting will be held at the home of Mrs. J.R.
Anderson on Saturday evening at 7 o'clock, and those
desiring to join the ladies tennis club are asked to be pre-
sent. Join the tennis club even if you do not play the
game. (May, 1906)

Polo Team, 1908, left to right, W.E.M. Holmes,
Frank McHugh, Harry Gunn (referee), Richard
Carle, F.P. Limoges.

Today 5- and 6-year-olds attend *‘Hockey School’
and while they may not yet have acquired the skills,
they have the equipment and the postures acquired
through watching T.V. It is a far cry from the mag-
azines tied on as shin pads, and the rinks on river
ice but the spirit is the same.

—_— o

tending to build a much-needed apartment building on the
site, there being no commercial apartment blocks in High
River at the time. For some reason the site was not considered
suitable, and the area was used for residential purposes.

Meanwhile two courts had been built on the south east cor-
ner of Seventh Avenue and 1st (Railway) Street, immediately
east of what was then the Catholic Church site.

In the late 1970’s interest in tennis once again revived, a
club was formed, and courts built south west of the swimming
pool, on Tenth Avenue. The High School classes also make
use of this facility.

Like all outdoor sports in High River, enthusiasts must
adapt to changing weather conditions. A clipping, undated,
refers to members of the Tennis Club turning out in working
togs to clean up the debris, place the tapes, and generally
prepare for a planned tournament. A snowstorm delayed the
event. It must have been a few years ago, as the Club had set
its fees at $5.00 for adults, $3.50 for students and $10.00 for
family memberships. However, officers Mrs. Jack Denny,
Dell Whitney, Barbara Holmes, Bert Mohr, Harry Stroud
and Tom Robertson were undaunted, stating that prospects
were at least sunny for membership, many former members,
newcomers and beginners showing interest.

Polo

It has been claimed, in an early Town bulletin, that High
River is probably Alberta’s top polo town. While places like
Cochrane, Pincher Creek and Millarville might dispute the ti-
tle certainly the local interest and support survived over many
decades and setbacks.

Polo was played here in the 1880’s, George Ross organizing
and instructing the first team. In 1892 the Calgary Herald
reported a polo tournament there, with High River players H.
Samson, D.H. McPherson, C.G. Ross and W. Humphrey

Ferguson are recalled as two skilled local playets.

The tennis court fence, it is also recalled, is the spot where
the de Foras family used to tether their old grey horse and
buggy before going to church nearby, or on longer jaunts by
train to Calgary. Undoubtedly the horse watched many a ten-
nis match, unperturbed.

In 1926 the tennis courts included a ‘‘pavilion”".

During the 1940’s, Bill Mitchell having sold his Jake and

the Kid T.V. rights, bought the old tennis court property in- 190
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playing against teams from Calgary and Macleod. While
High River emerged victorious, the Herald enthusiastically
reported the three teams as being ‘‘without doubt the finest
players in Canada.’’ Certainly two of the locals merited going
to Victoria. By 1893 A.H. Eckford had joined the team.

Other early polo players recalled are Justin Deane-
Freeman, Marston SexSmith, Frank Ward, J.H. Anderson,
Harry Robertson, G.N. Norton, Frank McHugh, Major Lan-
dale. Later Pastro Limoges, F.L. Watt, Richard Carle and
W.E.M. Holmes would join the list.

There were many honours and many tournaments, not all
from southern Alberta. In 1905 the North West champions
from High River travelled to Toronto to meet teams from
that city and from Rochester. They won the tournament and
two players, SexSmith and Robertson, were chosen to join the
Canadian team against the visiting team from England.

Originally the Toronto Globe was a bit supercilious in its
reference to the Western team and their chances against
Rochester. Described as coming from a spot ‘‘scarcely find-
able on the Canadian prairie map'’, with ‘‘ponies as ignorant
of pedigrees, as their ribs are of the tickle of the curry
combs’’, the High River outfit were later described by the
cream of Rochester’s polo set as having played like ‘‘red In-
dians”’. The savages won, not only the games by resounding
scores but also the plaudits of Toronto Globe, with the ack-
nowledgement of their “‘fair ... gentlemanly team ... (and)
sportsmanlike players.” Judging from pictures of the High
River horses, the Globe should have apologized to them also.

Polo was taken seriously by the local community. The
Round T Ranch today has a substantial barn in sound con-
dition, built by Eckford about 1904, for the purpose of stab-
ling polo ponies. It has 82 stalls. Polo grounds, too, adjoined
the 1904 ranch house.

About 1898 Ross obtained 10 acres of land from W.E.G.
Holmes a mile south of The Crossing, on the Holmes home-
stead. The polo field sported a pavilion and a flag-pole flying
the banner High River Polo Club. In 1907, following the
team’s winning the Chipman Cup and the American Polo
Tournament, the Club purchased a new polo field on the
north side of the Highwood, a part of the original SexSmith
homestead. Charlie Arnold, a later member of the Club, kept
this land in trust for many years and it is still held in the
names of the descendants of the Club’s members, including
the Holmes, Arnold, SexSmith and other families.

Like lacrosse, the polo games were to disappear at the out-
break of World War I, the players, almost without exception,
enlisting. Many never returned.

In 1927 the Club was revived. In 1930 both the Alberta Pro-
vincial and the Western Canada Tournaments were won by
High River.

The little old pavilion, setting for many afternoon teas and ;93
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1908 Alberta Lacrosse Champions.

1910 Champion Team.

The Mosley Cup, won in 1910 and the Calgary Al-
bertan Cup 1912 have been returned to High River
by courtesy of Mrs. Vin (Eleanor) Stanley and her
daughter.
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game sites, and during series playoffs excitement reached
fever pitch. While jobs were found for most of the players, it
appears that employers were extremely lenient in matters of
time off work.

In 1908 the team won the Southern Alberta Division, going
on to capture the Mosley Cup and the Intermediate Champ-
ionship, eliminating Red Deer in the process. In 1910 they
won the DeVebber Trophy and the senior Alberta champion-
ship. Calgary never did surrender the trophy.

In 1912 a new senior championship cup, this time donated
by the Calgary Albertan, came home to High River. In 1914,
in finals played at Cochrane, the championship was finally
won by Calgary.

With the war years, the lacrosse team and lacrosse fever
waned, never to be revived. Many of the players joined the
Army. Some returned to make their homes in High River, and
many of the town’s more community-minded citizens orig-
inally arrived here to play lacrosse.

High River’s Lacrosse annals include such names as Dr.
G.D. Stanley, Vin Stanley, Harry Nelson, Pastro Limoges,
Tom Merriam, Sid Waugh, Harry Waugh, Frank Watt, Alex
McCorquodale, Fred Dowling, Bert Poile, Red McMillan,
Bob Smith, H.H. Hec Gilchrist, Mel Ashley, Jimmy Watson,
Dick Behan, Pete Matheson, Elt Seigner, Cliff Seigner, Len-
ny Moore, Dave Winkler, Mel Bailey, Alex Adams, Renne
McMillan, Joe Hatcher, Joe Smith, Mel McLean, Red
McLean, Les Backus, Bill Backus, Billy Levelle, Paddy
McDonaugh, Paddy Bowlen, Dave Henry, Claude Riley,
George Riley, Ward Dexter, Billy Mack, Bert Beardman, Les
Sellers, Fraser Thompson, Gay Beattie, J.M. Campbell.

During those early days, Lacrosse kept the Town, as well as
its players, on their toes.

Since the arrival of A.D. Bowman in High River many
years ago, the Town has had an interest in tennis, with only a
couple of short lapses. Arthur Bowman had been runner-up
in the Manitoba Provincial Tennis Championships and it
wasn’t long before a Tennis Club was formed.

Two courts were built, on the corner of Sixth Avenue and
Second Street West. Jack Kwasney, hockey player, gave ten-
nis lessons during the summer, and Joe Robertson and Duke
Ferguson are recalled as two skilled local players.

The tennis court fence, it is also recalled, is the spot where
the de Foras family used to tether their old grey horse and
buggy before going to church nearby, or on longer jaunts by
train to Calgary. Undoubtedly the horse watched many a ten-
nis match, unperturbed.

In 1926 the tennis courts included a ‘‘pavilion”.

During the 1940’s, Bill Mitchell having sold his Jake and
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e Hiram W. ‘ey, owner of the
Round T Ranch;.  _ether with his son
Harper Sibley and a party of friends
arrived in High River in their private
rail car, “Manhattan,” on Friday
morning. Mr. Sibley will spend about
tens days in recreation and business
affairs connected with his interests in
these parts.

o “Dad” Partridge has drawn our
attention to an article in the Calgary
Herald of August 12th, in which it was
disproved that all red-headed girls are
bow-legged. A practical demonstration
was presented at a bathing beach at
Chicago, in which the large majority of
red-headed girls were deemed to have
normally straight legs.

August 20, 1925
Weather and Crops

Cutting operations were halted in
these parts by a rain which started
Thursday night and continued all day
Friday and part of Saturday. It was
continuous and at times it was a steady
downpour, amounting to well over (wo
inches, both in the foothills where it put
a stop to haying operations and on the
immediate prairies. The rain was
followed by clearing weather and hot
sunshine, with prospects for fine
harvesting conditions.

Cutting is quite general and will be
completely so by the end of the week.
Help is plentiful and numerous harvest
hands have been noticed about town for
the past week. The wages being paid are
$3.50 to $4.00 per day.

The local elevator prices today are
$1.36 for wheat, 38¢c for oats, 62¢ for
barley, and 80c for rye.

LABOR DAY DANCE ¥
Auspices of High River Tennis Club\f
in the Town Hall
Monday, September 7th
Music by Percy Proverb’s
“Georgians”
5-Piece Orchestra from Calgary.
Gentlemen $1.50 Ladies Free

remarkable stunts such as the
“spin,” “looping the loop.”
“Illerman turn,” rolls and half rolls.
His performance proved keenly
interesting to the many who had
never before witnessed such
thrilling antics. It was without
question the outstanding feature of
the afternoon and was greatly
appreciated by all the spectators
and by the sports day management.

Vulcan Oils’ Well
Progress Continues

Progress in the drilling of the Vulcan
Oils’ well continues steadily and
satisfactorily so far, without the delays
and mishaps which are sometimes
common to such an enterprise. On
Thursday of last week the daily papers
announced under large headings the
setting of the casing at one thousand
feet and the resumption of drilling with
a fifteen and one-half inch bit.

Manager Spooner reported this week
to company directors in Vulcan that the
hole was down another seventy feet and
if present success continues, a depth of
2.000 feet might be reached by the first
of next month. Should this anticipation
be realized, it will be the greatest
drilling accomplishment recorded in the
Turner Valley field. The splendid
success to date has resulted in a steady
demand for Vulcan Oils’ stock, the sale
of which is not being pushed by the
company.

Wheatbelt Baseball League

The possibilities of completing the
few remaining games in the Wheatbelt
Baseball League schedule are very slim,
as owing to the early harvest season it
becomes impossible for some of the
teams to fill their quota of players.
As a result the schedule will likely be
abandoned.

At the present time, High River heads
the league standings with a winning
percentage of .636. Nanton is in second
place with .600; Red Cross third with
546: Blackie fourth with .500; and
Glenview in the basement with .181.

having tw~ hottles ol beer 1n nis
possession r than the residence in
which he resides. He pleaded guilty and
was fined $20 and costs.

+ The management of the Electric
Theatre and the Marshall Drug Store
will entertain the school children of
town and district at a matinee at the
theatre on Friday afternoon, August
28th, at three o’clock. Special comic
films have been obtained for the
amusement of the children. Get your
tickets anytime at Marshall Drug Store,
free for the asking.

« The citizens of Brant put in a new
stretch of sidewalk on Saturday,
stretching from the hotel to the
Bank of Commerce. It is much
appreciated as the crossing at this point
was a very muddy one during wet
weather.

o A fire which completely destroyed
their house and wiped all their personal
possessions occurred at the home of Mr.
and Mrs. William Wilson at Gladys on
August 12th. The crackling of flames
about midnight awoke the 14-year-old
daughter who was sleeping on the
second floor. Her cries aroused Mr.
and Mrs. Wilson who were sleeping
in a tent adjoining the house. The
daughter and Mrs. Wilson’s sister, who
was also sleeping upstairs, managed to
make a safe exit from the upper
windows of the house. Within a few
minutes the entire building was
engulfed in flames.

The Greatest Drama
You’ve Ever Seen!

“Abraham
Lincoln”

at the Electric Theatre
Friday and Saturday

See the boy who became President.
See him rise from from the log
cabin of his birth to the highest
place in the land!




To: The High River Times - Kevin Rushworth
From: Irene Kerr, Museum of the Highwood
Subject: Article for Tuesday, April 18, 2016

Anyone for Tennis?

Tennis has always been a popular recreational activity in the area. According to the High River
Times, a membership fee of $3 was fixed at an organizational meeting of the High River tennis club
on May 3, 1906. A few days later the ladies got into the act with a meeting of their own. By 1908
there was one club for everyone with fees of $3 for men and $1 for ladies. Two courts were built
on the corner of 6th Avenue and 2nd Street S.W.

Over the years the tennis club held numerous social and musical events for fundraising. In 1908
one of the first was held with ‘talented Scotch vocalist’ Miss Lena Duthie. Matches were held with
players from Macleod and Calgary and “other towns along the line”.

In 1913 a column in the Times extolled the virtues of tennis and the idea that, unlike baseball
and football, it was deemed suitable for both sexes. It also featured more “educational” qualities
than the other two sports and demanded: “that a man be honest with himself and others,
courteous and considerate”.

Lillian Knupp, who lived across the street from the tennis courts when she was a child wrote a
humorous anecdote: “the tennis courts fence is the spot where the de Foras family used to tether
their old grey horse and buggy before going to church nearby or on longer jaunts by train to
Calgary. Undoubtedly the horse watched many a tennis match, unperturbed”.

Local churches got into the game with the organization of the Chalmers Church tennis club. The
church was located at the present site of the United Church, but it is not mentioned which courts
they played on. Around the same time the Times reported that the Anglican Church tennis courts
in the south part of town were being put into shape. In May 1922 a meeting was held to form yet
another tennis club. It was to play on the upgraded Anglican courts.

During the depression teams travelled to nearby towns for tournaments, and more fundraising
dances and events were held. In April 1932 two additional courts were built next to St. Francis’
Catholic church (on 7th Avenue and 1st Street SW.).

The courts were severely impacted by the 1932 flood and the Times reported: “members of the
tennis club put in four solid hours recently removing silt from the courts and putting them back
into playing condition. The operation involved shovels, wheelbarrows etc. commandeered from all
sources”.

After the 1932 flood, it was reported that $520. was spent for new courts and equipment. The
fundraising and membership revenues must have been a success, by 1935 the club had paid off
their loan and reported that it was in “excellent financial shape”. They were able to reduce their
fees and High School students were offered the use of a court for free.

In 1936 the Tennis club was commended for the their contributions to “town beautification”. -
Several hundreds of dollars were spent on fresh coats of green and white paint for the fences and



clubhouse, new wire and new lounge benches were installed.

There is not much information in the museum archives regarding tennis between 1938 and the

1970’s when interest in tennis was once again revived, a club formed and courts built south west

of the swimming pool on 10th Ave. S.W. These courts were heavily used for many years until the

Charles Clark Medical Centre was builtin 2011.
Today, new courts have been built near Montrose. The courts aré owned by the town but the

High River Tennis Club maintains and operates the courts. They are now accepting memberships

and lesson registrations for the 2016 season.
If you have any stories or images about the club over the last 110 years, please contact the

museum or the High River tennis club: www.highrivertennis.com



High River Tennis Club History notes

According to Lillian Knupp in Life and Legends, former runner-up in the Manitoba Provincial Tennis
Championship, Arthur Bowman arrived in High River and an interest developed in the game. She doesn’t say
exactly when he arrived.She also wrote that two courts were built on the corner of Seventh Ave. and Second
St. S.W. These are in the background of the attached photos.

There are a couple of interesting stories, and a W.0. Mitchell connection:

“The tennis court fence ... is the spot where the de Foras family used to tether their old grey horse and buggy
before going to church nearby., or on longer jaunts by train to Calgary. Undoubtedly the horse watched many
a tennis match, unperturbed.

In 1926 the tennis courts included a pavilion.

During the 1940s, Bill Mitchell, having sold his “Jake and the Kid” tv rights, bought the old tennis court
property intending to build a much-needed apartment building on the site .... For some reason the site was
not considered suitable.

Meanwhile two courts had been built on the southeast corner of Seventh Ave. and First St., immediately
east of what was then the Catholic Church site.

In the late 1970’s interest in tennis once again revived, a club was formed, and courts were built south west
of the swimming pool on Tenth Ave. S.W.

From the High River Times:

- the first reference to a tennis club in High River is in the May 3/06 edition:
“A membership fee of $3 was fixed by High River Tennis Club for 1906. Officers for the year are A.H. Eckford,
John Brazier, Dr. Douglas Stanley, George Ash, Louis Roberts, Alfred Kelly, Dr. Learmouth, J.R. Anderson, Dr.
Hamilton and H.W. Blaylock”.

- on May 10, 1906 the ladies got into the game:
“Officers elected at the formation of the High River Ladies Tennis Club included Mesdames Baines, T.W.

Robertson, J.R. Anderson,
G.E. Ash, G.E. Learmouth, Blaylock and Thompson and the Misses Heslip”.

- in 1908 at the organizational meeting - the fee was $3 for men and $1 for ladies.

- tennis was more than just a sport and often the tennis clubs ventured into social territory - most likely for
fundraising. In November 1908 the Times reported on an evening featuring Miss Lena Duthie and “presented

under the auspices of the High River Tennis Club” that would “no doubt receive large patronage”. Admission
was 50 cents and seats could be reserved.

- in 1910 the rates went up to $4 and $2 and matches were planned with players from Macleod and Calgary
and “other towns along the line”.

- See attached for a story from August 7, 1913

- In 1916 the fees were still $4 and $2 although a special fee of $1 was set for soldiers

- In 1920 a Tennis Club dance was held in the Town Hall. Gents: $1.50, Ladies 50 cents, Spectators 25 cents!
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P999.037.757 UnkHOWl’l Museum of the Highwood

Description
lilian knupp, age 5, shovelling snow off sidewalk with large dog. tennis clubhouse across street.
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P999.037.768 Photograph Museum of the Highwood

Description
lillian short riding tricycle on wood sidewalk, with unidentified friend, tennis clubhouse behind them.
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